
 1

MUSCONETCONG SEWERAGE AUTHORITY 

 
Commissioners’ Meeting 
October 27, 2022 

 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE MUSCONETCONG SEWERAGE AUTHORITY  
110 CONTINENTAL DRIVE BUDD LAKE, NJ 07828 

   
Chairman Rattner called the meeting to order at 7:30 PM.  Following the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag, announcement was 
made that adequate notice of this meeting had been provided for as defined by the “Open Public Meetings Act”. 

 
Members Present:  Andrew Cangiano, Brian McNeilly, Michael Pucilowski, Steven Rattner, Thomas Romano, Joseph 

Schwab, Elmer Still, Jack Sylvester 
 
Members Absent:    James Benson, Michael Grogan, Melanie Michetti, Richard Schindelar 
 
Others Present:  Patrick Dwyer – Esq., Jilliam Martucci – Administrative, James Schilling – Executive Director, 

James Wancho – PE 
 
Others Absent:  Thomas Carroll – QPA 
 
Attendance Roll Call: 

Mr. Benson  Absent  Chairman Rattner  Present  
Mr. Cangiano  Present  Mr. Romano  Present  
Mr. Grogan  Absent  Mr. Schindelar  Absent 
Mr. McNeilly  Present  Mr. Schwab   Present 
Mrs. Michetti  Absent   Mr. Still  Present 
Mr. Pucilowski  Present  Mr. Sylvester  Present 

 

 



 2

Chairman Rattner open and closed the meeting to the public. 
 
The “Regular” meeting minutes of September 27, 2022 accepted on a motion offered by Mr. Pucilowski, seconded by Mr. 
McNeilly and the affirmative all in favor vote of members present.  All In Favor Vote: 

Mr. Benson  Absent  Chairman Rattner  Aye 
Mr. Cangiano  Abstain  Mr. Romano  Aye 
Mr. Grogan  Absent  Mr. Schindelar  Absent 
Mr. McNeilly  Aye  Mr. Schwab  Aye 
Mrs. Michetti  Absent  Mr. Still  Aye 
Mr. Pucilowski  Aye  Mr. Sylvester  Abstain 

Comments: 

 Mr. Schwab verified that the stipend resolution was passed at the last meeting. 
o Mr. Dwyer, Esq. advised that the resolution is dated for the last meeting, this is just a formality.  
o Mr. Schilling advised that this resolution is to formerly memorialize the resolution.  

 
The Financial Reports for 2021 were accepted on a motion offered by Mr. Romano, seconded by Mr. Schwab and the affirmative 
Roll Call vote of members present.  Roll Call Vote: 

Mr. Benson  Absent  Chairman Rattner  Yes  
Mr. Cangiano  Yes  Mr. Romano  Yes 
Mr. Grogan  Absent  Mr. Schindelar  Absent  
Mr. McNeilly  Yes  Mr. Schwab  Yes 
Mrs. Michetti  Absent  Mr. Still  Yes 
Mr. Pucilowski  Yes  Mr. Sylvester  Yes 

Comments: 

 None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 3

Financial Reports – 2021 

 



 4

 



 5

The Financial Reports for 2022 were accepted on a motion offered by Mr. Romano, seconded by Mr. Schwab and the affirmative 
Roll Call vote of members present. Roll Call Vote: 

Mr. Benson  Absent  Chairman Rattner  Yes  
Mr. Cangiano  Yes  Mr. Romano  Yes 
Mr. Grogan  Absent  Mr. Schindelar  Absent  
Mr. McNeilly  Yes  Mr. Schwab  Yes 
Mrs. Michetti  Absent  Mr. Still  Yes 
Mr. Pucilowski  Yes  Mr. Sylvester  Yes 

Comments: 

 None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 6

Financial Reports – 2022 

 



 7

 



 8

The Pending Vouchers for October 20, 2022 were approved for payment on a motion offered by Mr. Romano, seconded by Mr. 
Cangiano and the affirmative roll call vote of members present.  Roll Call Vote: 

Mr. Benson  Absent  Chairman Rattner  Yes  
Mr. Cangiano  Yes  Mr. Romano  Yes 
Mr. Grogan  Absent  Mr. Schindelar  Absent  
Mr. McNeilly  Yes  Mr. Schwab  Yes 
Mrs. Michetti  Absent  Mr. Still  Yes 
Mr. Pucilowski  Yes  Mr. Sylvester  Yes 

Comments:  

   None 
 



 9

 



 10

The following correspondence for October 2022 was received and filed on a motion offered by Mr. Sylvester, seconded by Mr. 
McNeilly and the affirmative all in favor vote of members present.  All In Favor Vote: 

Mr. Benson  Absent  Chairman Rattner  Aye 
Mr. Cangiano  Aye  Mr. Romano  Aye 
Mr. Grogan  Absent  Mr. Schindelar  Absent  
Mr. McNeilly  Aye  Mr. Schwab  Aye 
Mrs. Michetti  Absent  Mr. Still  Aye 
Mr. Pucilowski  Aye  Mr. Sylvester  Aye 

 
 
Comments:  

 C: Chairman Rattner stated that it is expected to be between 300,000‐400,000 gallons 
o Chairman Rattner advised of the exact location of this project. 
o Mr. McNeilly advised they are actively working on the residential end of this project. 
o Mr. McNeilly and Mr. Schwab discussed the permissions consent that would be required in order to proceed 

 Mr. Schilling asked if the flow would be coming down International Drive in the Mount Olive Meter Chamber? 
o Chairman Rattner stated he hasn’t seen anything yet.  
o Mr. Schilling advised he was on site with the developer for Matrix Development today regarding the commercial 

warehouse.  We have not seen anything from the TWA as of now.  The MSA has no visibility as to what the 
member towns are promising.  
 

Monthly Reports: 
The Director's Report for the month of October 2022 and Maintenance and Repairs and Flow Data for September, 2022 was 
accepted on a motion offered by Mr. Romano and seconded by Mr. Schwab and the affirmative all‐in favor vote of members 
present.  All In Favor Vote: 

Mr. Benson  Absent  Chairman Rattner  Aye 
Mr. Cangiano  Aye  Mr. Romano  Aye 
Mr. Grogan  Absent  Mr. Schindelar  Absent  
Mr. McNeilly  Aye  Mr. Schwab  Aye 
Mrs. Michetti  Absent  Mr. Still  Aye 
Mr. Pucilowski  Aye  Mr. Sylvester  Aye 

Comments: 

 Mr. Schilling advised that earlier in the week there was an Annual EJIF inspection, MSA scored 99 out of 100.  

 Mr. Schilling advised that Counsel and the Engineer have been meeting with Matrix Development regarding their 
project because the Regional PS#1: 12‐ and 14‐inch mains flow through the proposed project area.  Currently 
working with the developer, the 12 inch is from 1967 with no drawing available, the 14 inch is from 1989.  

o Mr. Pucilowski asked if there are any manholes 
o Mr. Schilling responded that they are ARV’s based on the drawings, we have engaged Suburban Consulting 

for a maximum of $2500.00 and working with PS&S to help locate the mains.  The developer has initiated a 
soft dig and as of 11am today they had located the 12‐inch main. 

o Chairman Rattner verified that this is our line and if there is an easement.  Mr. Schilling deferred to Mr. 
Wancho, PE. 

o Mr. Wancho, PE advised that there is a document on file from 1990, after the 14‐inch line was installed, it 
appears that the 12‐inch line was vacated which would mean the line was intended to be moved however 
that does not appear to be the case, still attempting to confirm that the 12 inch is in the easement.  The 
lines are steel.  



 11

o Mr. Schilling advised that we are using metal detectors, GIS, soft dig and VAC truck.  
 
*Inaudible 

o Mr. Wancho advised that the drawings for the 14‐inch force main show the 12‐inch force main. 
o Mr. Cangiano asked if once we locate the mains, can we get the easement. 

 Mr. Wancho, PE stated that it is possible that we may be able to have them move the 12‐inch 
line into the 14‐inch line easement. Their plan right now is to put a road on top of the line. 

 Mr. Cangiano asked if they have received any approvals as of yet.  Mr. Wancho, PE advised no.  
Mr. Cangiano stated that we can then get an easement 

 Mr. Wancho, PE advised that the lines were put in steel casings which leads them to believe 
they did not want anyone driving over the lines.  

o Mr. Dwyer, Esq. suggested we ask the developer for the title report.  

 Mr. Pucilowski asked Mr. Schilling about the PFAS survey not being completed.  
o Mr. Schilling advised that based on previous conversations with The Board and the directive was not to 

participate.  

 Mr. Pucilowski asked about the calibration record from Mount Olive not being received. 
o Mr. Schilling advised that he requests it every year.  Mr. Pucilowski advised that he will stop in and 

remind them  
o Mr. Schilling advised that it is required to calibrate annually, MSA calibrates semi‐annually.  

 Mr. Pucilowski asked about the AEA Meeting if there was anything to share. 
o Mr. Schilling advised that there was discussion of the Flood Plain.  
o AEA is contracting a lab to do PFAS testing should we want to participate. 

 Mr. Pucilowski asked for clarification on Ultrasonic Transducer installed at Secondary Clarifier 3 & 4 
o Mr. Schilling responded that this technology is typically used in water tanks, ponds, lagoons more still 

water areas.  SC3 was taken down, cleaned, power washed and the equipment was installed, we should 
see results in a few months.  

o Mr. Pucilowski asked about covering the tanks.  Mr. Schilling advised that it is the best way however it is 
the most expensive way.  Additionally, maintenance is not able to see, hear, smell necessary things if the 
tanks are covered.  Mr. Schilling further advised the cost was $7500.00 and he expected to purchase two 
more in the spring if this works as expected.  
 

The Engineer’s Report for the month of October, 2022 was accepted on a motion offered by Mr. Pucilowski, seconded by Mr. 
Still and the affirmative all‐in favor of members present.  All In Favor Vote: 

Mr. Benson  Absent  Chairman Rattner  Aye 
Mr. Cangiano  Aye  Mr. Romano  Aye 
Mr. Grogan  Absent  Mr. Schindelar  Absent  
Mr. McNeilly  Aye  Mr. Schwab  Aye 
Mrs. Michetti  Absent  Mr. Still  Aye 
Mr. Pucilowski  Aye  Mr. Sylvester  Aye 

 
Comments: 

 Mr. Pucilowski inquired about the smoke detectors malfunctions  
o Mr. Wancho, P.E. advised that the moisture and humidity in the building are causing the malfunction.  

The sole purpose of these devices was to activate the fan if smoke was detected, the chance of smoke 
the building is remote and since they are not required under code – it was determined to just remove 
them. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 12

New Business: 
Comments:  

 Mr. Pucilowski recommended entering closed session before moving to the Resolutions in New Business 
o It was determined by The Board to move Resolutions 22‐42 and 22‐43 following closed session.  

 
Resolution No. 22‐44 was offered on a motion by Mr. Pucilowski seconded by Mr. Cangiano and the affirmative roll call vote of 
members present.  Roll Call Vote: 

Mr. Benson  Absent  Chairman Rattner  Yes  
Mr. Cangiano  Yes  Mr. Romano  Yes 
Mr. Grogan  Absent  Mr. Schindelar  Absent  
Mr. McNeilly  Yes  Mr. Schwab  Yes 
Mrs. Michetti  Absent  Mr. Still  Yes 
Mr. Pucilowski  Yes  Mr. Sylvester  Yes 

*See attached resolution 
 
Comments: 

 None 
 
Resolution No. 22‐45 was offered on a motion by Mr. Still seconded by Mr. Cangiano and the affirmative roll call vote of 
members present.  Roll Call Vote: 

Mr. Benson  Absent  Chairman Rattner  Yes  
Mr. Cangiano  Yes  Mr. Romano  No 
Mr. Grogan  Absent  Mr. Schindelar  Absent  
Mr. McNeilly  Yes  Mr. Schwab  Yes 
Mrs. Michetti  Absent  Mr. Still  Yes 
Mr. Pucilowski  No  Mr. Sylvester  Yes 

*See attached resolution 
 
Comments: 

 None 
 
Resolution No. 22‐46 was offered on a motion by Mr. Romano seconded by Mr. Cangiano and the affirmative roll call vote of 
members present.  Roll Call Vote: 

Mr. Benson  Absent  Chairman Rattner  Yes  
Mr. Cangiano  Yes  Mr. Romano  Yes 
Mr. Grogan  Absent  Mr. Schindelar  Absent  
Mr. McNeilly  Yes  Mr. Schwab  Yes 
Mrs. Michetti  Absent  Mr. Still  Yes 
Mr. Pucilowski  Yes  Mr. Sylvester  Yes 

*See attached resolution 
 
Comments: 

 Mr. Schwab stated that we are looking at substantial increases for 2023, although there is a decrease in debt 
service there will still be an overall increase in operating of 10.5%.  Sludge, electricity and hospitalization are 
large increases.  The finance committee determined that there will not be a 2021 budget surplus will not be 
refunded in 2022 but will be credited to the 2023 budget which will reduce the 2023 increase to 4.7% verses 
10.5%.  Mr. Schwab further stated that this will be a future practice going forward. 

 Chairman Rattner stated that the goal was to keep things as steady as possible with the uprising costs. 

 Mr. Schwab stated that if prices do in fact skyrocket that the Auditor advised that the MSA can pull from the 
reserves if absolutely necessary to avoid going back to the member towns.  

 Mr. Pucilowski asked if we should not proceed with any Capital Projects.  
o Mr. Schilling advised that Capital Reserves is currently at $1.6 million. 

 Mr. Schilling stated that we have electricity locked in until May.  Sludge has a substantial increase. 



 13

 Mr. Pucilowski asked if we can incorporate a fuel adjustment.  Mr. Schwab advised that would be a question for 
the QPA  

o Mr. Schilling advised that the QPA prepared the bid spec.  Mr. Schwab advised that we had this 
discussion previously and its not really allowable.  

 Mr. Sylvester asked Mr. Schilling to forward the increase numbers to The Board. 
 

Resolution No. 22‐47 was offered on a motion by Mr. Schwab seconded by Mr. Romano and the affirmative roll call vote of 
members present.  Roll Call Vote: 

Mr. Benson  Absent  Chairman Rattner  Yes  
Mr. Cangiano  Yes  Mr. Romano  Yes 
Mr. Grogan  Absent  Mr. Schindelar  Absent  
Mr. McNeilly  Yes  Mr. Schwab  Yes 
Mrs. Michetti  Absent  Mr. Still  Yes 
Mr. Pucilowski  Yes  Mr. Sylvester  Yes 

*See attached resolution 
 
Comments: 

 Mr. Pucilowski asked if a resolution is needed when we do a Capital Project 
o Mr. Schilling advised that in each year’s budget, there is a capital budget that goes to the DCA this 

consists of capital projects, debt service etc. this outlines what we will do that year and for five years 
out.  Annually we send a capital plan amendment which explains what projects were done that year – 
what we did or did not do.  

o Mr. Pucilowski confirmed that we are advising the DCA if we did or did not do projects we expected to.  
 
Resolution No. 22‐48 was offered on a motion by Mr. Still seconded by Mr. Romano and the affirmative roll call vote of members 
present.  Roll Call Vote: 

Mr. Benson  Absent  Chairman Rattner  Yes  
Mr. Cangiano  Yes  Mr. Romano  Yes 
Mr. Grogan  Absent  Mr. Schindelar  Absent  
Mr. McNeilly  Yes  Mr. Schwab  Yes 
Mrs. Michetti  Absent  Mr. Still  Yes 
Mr. Pucilowski  Yes  Mr. Sylvester  Yes 

*See attached resolution 
 
Comments: 

 None 
 
Old Business: 
Comments: 

 None 
 
Closed Session: 
Entered Closed Session on a motion made by Mr. Sylvester, seconded by Mr. Cangiano at 08:30pm and the affirmative all in 
favor vote of members present. All In Favor Vote: 

Mr. Benson  Absent  Chairman Rattner  Aye  
Mr. Cangiano  Aye  Mr. Romano  Aye 
Mr. Grogan  Absent  Mr. Schindelar  Absent  
Mr. McNeilly  Aye  Mr. Schwab  Aye 
Mrs. Michetti  Absent  Mr. Still  Aye  
Mr. Pucilowski  Aye  Mr. Sylvester  Aye 

 
Comments: 

 Mr. Pucilowski stated that will be taking some action following Closed Session. 



 14

Open Session: 
Entered Open Session on a motion made by Mr. Romano, seconded by Mr. Schwab at 09:06pm by an all‐in favor Vote of 
members present.  All In Favor Vote: 

Mr. Benson  Absent  Chairman Rattner  Aye  
Mr. Cangiano  Aye  Mr. Romano  Aye 
Mr. Grogan  Absent  Mr. Schindelar  Absent  
Mr. McNeilly  Aye  Mr. Schwab  Aye 
Mrs. Michetti  Absent  Mr. Still  Aye  
Mr. Pucilowski  Aye  Mr. Sylvester  Aye 

Comments: 

 None 
 
Resolution No. 22‐42 was offered on a motion by Mr. Romano seconded by Mr. Schwab and the affirmative all‐in favor of 
members present. Roll Call Vote: 

Mr. Benson  Absent  Chairman Rattner  Yes  
Mr. Cangiano  Yes  Mr. Romano  Yes 
Mr. Grogan  Absent  Mr. Schindelar  Absent  
Mr. McNeilly  Yes  Mr. Schwab  Yes 
Mrs. Michetti  Absent  Mr. Still  Yes 
Mr. Pucilowski  Yes  Mr. Sylvester  Yes 

*See attached resolution 
 
Comments: 

 None 
 
Resolution No. 22‐43 was offered on a motion by Mr. McNeilly seconded by Mr. Romano and the affirmative roll call vote of 
members present.  Roll Call Vote: 

Mr. Benson  Absent  Chairman Rattner  Yes  
Mr. Cangiano  Yes  Mr. Romano  Yes 
Mr. Grogan  Absent  Mr. Schindelar  Absent  
Mr. McNeilly  Yes  Mr. Schwab  Yes 
Mrs. Michetti  Absent  Mr. Still  Yes 
Mr. Pucilowski  Yes  Mr. Sylvester  Yes 

*See attached resolution 
 
Comments: 

 None 
 

Adjournment: 
Motion made by Mr. Romano, seconded by Mr. Schindelar at 09:09pm and the all‐in favor Vote of members present, Chairman 
Rattner adjourned the meeting at 09:09pm.  All In Favor Vote: 

Mr. Benson  Absent  Chairman Rattner  Aye  
Mr. Cangiano  Aye  Mr. Romano  Aye 
Mr. Grogan  Absent  Mr. Schindelar  Absent  
Mr. McNeilly  Aye  Mr. Schwab  Aye 
Mrs. Michetti  Absent  Mr. Still  Aye  
Mr. Pucilowski  Aye  Mr. Sylvester  Aye 

 
 
 
 

Respectfully Submitted: 
Jilliam Martucci ‐ Administrative Assistant 



 15

 



 16
 



 17

 



 18

 



 19

 



 20

 



 21

 


